From Prison to Museum

Norwich Castle was built as a symbol of royal domination by the Normans
over the local Anglo-Saxon population. Its huge structure, placed on the large
motte in the centre of the city, continued to exercise a profound visual affect
on the local population over the centuries as a powerful symbol of civic pride.
It was frequently engraved by artists and despite being a prison holding
thieves, villains and debtors only a wall's thickness away, was a popular
venue for city folk to walk around. The following account reveals the pleasure
taken in this, following the completion of William Wilkins’ rebuilding:

The works of the New County Gaol are now nearly arrived at a state of
completion. And the walk round the Castle Hill having, after a long interval
of unavoidable exclusion, been thrown open again to the public, was
visited on Sunday last, by throngs of persons: all apparently eager to enjoy
the salutary pleasures of a favourite promenade. With too lively
remembrance of what it was, before the platform of the Hill exhibited
such formidable encroachments of stone masonry, we yet were gratified
with the neatness of the general arrangement, and the means which it
still affords of viewing the city and surrounding country.

From The Norfolk Chronicle and Norwich Gazette, Saturday 12t
November 1834 (Vol LVII N0.2894)

This is shown in David Hodgson's coloured lithograph of the Castle made
some time after Wilkins’ prison was built. People are shown wandering
around the mound with its iron railings, which are still in place today.

Often the steady stream of images of the Castle would be advertised locally:



From The Norwich Mercury, Saturday 29" March 1834 (No. 5369)

Despite this obvious importance of the Castle in the cultural and civic mind of
Norwich people, the building was still an operating prison. The needs of the
building, and its maintenance and upkeep, were ongoing causes of concern



to the local Magistrates and the Prison Governor, John Johnson. The
potential conflict between these two viewpoints was felt most clearly when it
was decided that the Castle’s main outer walls were in need of restoration in
1834. The repairs, which were carried out, caused a local outcry as the
following pieces from local paper The Norwich Mercury reveal:

From The Norwich Mercury, Saturday 3™ May 1834 (No. 5374)
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At a meeting of the Castle Committee for

'| restoring the gouth and West Sides of that
ancient edifice, held on Saturday last, Mr

E Watson’s tender for preforming that coutract

‘| was accepted.

-

From The Norwich Mercury, Saturday 24" May 1834 (No. 5377)

From The Norwich Mercury, Saturday 26" July 1834 (No. 5386)




From The Norwich Mercury, Saturday 2" August 1834 (No. 5387)



From The Norwich Mercury, Saturday 9" August 1834 (No. 5388)



Given the importance of the Castle to the City, its conversion to a Museum
was a natural suggestion, providing a civic amenity reflecting the history and
sense of place Norwich had. We are very fortunate to have a series of
photographs showing the Castle as a prison at its closure, and of the
progress of the building works from 1887 to 1894.

b

Now you see it... The Keep with its brick cell blocks built by Sir John Soane
(above) and following their demolition (below)




Modern arches, designed to look Norman like the Keep, were inserted to hold
up the new roof, and a wooden walkway inserted around the edge
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Following the grand opening of the Castle Museum by the Duke and
Duchess of York (later King George V and Queen Mary) in October 1894
new staff had to be appointed as attendants. This picture shows those
working in 1897 (left to right): W Jarvis; H Wurr; E Palmer; W Benns Palmer:
Seated, J Nunn (joiner) and E Bacon (stoker). Jarvis, in the top hat, was the
doorman






